
DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM, AND SWANLEY HEALTH 
AND WELLBEING BOARD

Councillor Roger Gough (Chair) 

Councillor Ann Allen 
Councillor Tony Searles
Councillor David Turner

Debbie Stock 
Dr Elizabeth Lunt 

Sheri Green 
Graham Harris 

Anne Tidmarsh
Andrew Scott - Clark
Nick Moor 

Melanie Norris 
Sarah Kilkie

Lesley Bowles 

Kent County Council

Dartford Borough Council
Sevenoaks District Council
Gravesham Borough Council

DGS - CCG
DGS - CCG

Dartford Borough Council
Dartford Borough Council

Kent County Council
Kent County Council
Kent County Council

Gravesham Borough Council
Gravesham Borough Council

Sevenoaks District Council

Healthwatch
A meeting of the above Board will be held on Wednesday 7 December 2016 

In Room B12 at 3.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford

If a member of the Board is unable to attend this meeting, apologies for absence can 
be submitted to the Clerk to the meeting on 01322 343251 or by eMail to 
neil.murphy@dartford.gov.uk

Questions relating to the arrangements for meetings of the Board should be directed 
in the first instance to the Clerk

A G E N D A 
1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations Of Interest 

3. Minutes (Pages 1 - 6)
The Minutes of the meeting of the Dartford Gravesham and Swanley 
Health and Wellbeing Board held on 25 August 2016 are attached for 



confirmation.

Issues arising from the Minutes not addressed elsewhere on the 
Agenda can be raised at this item.

4. Kent County Council Health and Wellbeing Board (Pages 7 - 16)
The Chairman may wish to report on any issues of relevance to this 
Board arising from the meetings held on 21 September and 23 
November 2016

The Minutes of the September meeting and Agenda for the 
November meeting are attached.

5. Urgent Items 
The Chairman will report on any urgent item and determine its 
position on the Agenda.

6. Strategic Transformation Plan 
An Officer from the Clinical Commissioning Group will be present to 
update the Board on this matter.

7. New District Health Deal 
A presentation will be made by Lesley Bowles on the implications of 
the New District Health Deal.

8. Local Children's Partnership Groups 
A brief report is attached for the Board’s information.  Unfortunately 
the report author, Nick Moor, cannot attend the meeting and has 
asked that any questions on the report be forwarded to him by Email, 
at the following address.

Nick.Moor@kent.gov.uk 

9. Feedback from LGA Workshop. (Pages 17 - 20)

10. Programme of Meetings 2017 - 2018 (Pages 21 - 24)

11. Actions Outstanding from Previous Meetings. (Pages 25 - 26)

12. Board Work Programme (Pages 27 - 30)

13. Information Exchange 



1

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL

DARTFORD GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

MINUTES of the meeting of the Dartford Gravesham and Swanley Health and 
Wellbeing Board held on Thursday 25 August 2016.

PRESENT: Councillor Roger Gough (Chairman)
Councillor Mrs Ann D Allen MBE
Councillor David Turner

Debbie Stock
Sheri Green
Andrew Scott- Clark
Melanie Norris
Lesley Bowles
Sarah Kilkie
Nick Moor

ALSO PRESENT:
Hannah Gooden, Val Miller, Carol Patrick, Dr Manpinder Sahota, and Su Xavier.

14. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Tristran Godfrey, Graham Harris, 
Dr Elizabeth Lunt, Councillor Tony Searles, and Ann Tidmarsh.

The Chairman reported that since the last meeting Stuart Collins and Cecilia 
Yardley had left the Board.  Mr Collins had received promotion within KCC 
and his place was to be taken by Mr Nick Moor.   The Chairman welcomed Mr 
Moor to his first Board meeting.  The Chairman also welcomed Dr Sahota, 
from the Clinical Commissioning Group and Mrs Carol Patrick of KCC as it 
was also their first meeting of the Board.

The Chairman informed the Board that Cecilia Yardley was unable to continue 
as a Board member due to work commitments, and that he had written to Ms 
Yardley thanking her for her service on the Board, her valued contributions, 
and wishing her well for the future.

The Chairman finally explained that he was due to attend the funeral of a 
colleague and that he would have to leave the meeting at 2.30pm.  He asked 
Councillor Ann Allen to take the Chair at that point.

15. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no Declarations of Interest received.

16. MINUTES 

The Minutes of the Dartford Gravesham and Swanley Health and Wellbeing 
Board, held on 8 June 2016 were confirmed as a correct record of that 
meeting.



DARTFORD GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

THURSDAY 25 AUGUST 2016

2

17. KENT COUNTY COUNCIL HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

The Chairman reviewed the meeting of the Kent Health and Wellbeing board 
held on 20 July 2016, and updated the Board on 

The Kent Environment Strategy.   It was noted that this topic was to 
considered by local HWBs

Kent and Medway Crisis Concordat

Review of Outcome 2: Prevention of Ill – Health The Board noted that an item 
on this topic was contained in the Agenda for the current meeting.

18. URGENT ITEMS 

There were no urgent items for the Board to consider but the following issues 
arising from the morning Member training session were mentioned.

 Agenda Balance – ensuring that the Board has a more proactive role 
than merely monitoring progress.

 Considering ways to action decisions and proposals made by the 
Board

 Publicity for the HWB

 Engagement of schools and young people in health initiatives

 Preventative approaches to Healthcare.

Arising from this it was noted that the Chairman and Sarah Kilkie were to draw 
together the points raised at the training session in order to formulate an 
alternative approach to decision making and task setting.

19. ANNUAL REVIEW OF LOCAL HEALTH PROFILES AND PRIORITIES 

Andrew Scott – Clark presented a report which acknowledged the priority 
issues which had been identified by the Board in previous meetings, identified 
strategic health inequalities across Kent and informed the Board of a revised 
focus adopted by the Kent Health and Wellbeing Board which concentrated 
on the 88 areas within the County which have the highest “all age” “all cause” 
mortality rates.

It was noted that 13 of these areas lie within the DGS Board area and that the 
Kent Board has asked that the Board re - focusses its attentions on these 13 
areas. 



DARTFORD GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

THURSDAY 25 AUGUST 2016

3

Members commented that it would wish to target the most deprived 
communities, which were at present being mapped and were informed that 
this would be completed by December this year.

The Board accordingly agreed that it would 

a) review priorities once discrete community area had been identified;

b) try to clarify he role of the Board in addressing health inequalities; and, 

c) involve local GP practices in promoting schemes to reduce obesity.

20. UPDATE ON SWANLEY AND HEXTABLE MASTERPLAN 

Members were reminded that they had received initial details of plans for the 
redevelopment and regeneration of Swanley town centre and Hextable.

Arising from this the Board received a presentation from Lesley Bowles and 
Hannah Gooden of Sevenoaks District Council, which set out a number of 
broad actions which would be necessary for the regeneration of Swanley 
which included 

• Ensuring delivery of improved rail services and connectivity;
• Creating a new small business quarter in Swanley;
• Reinforcing the town centre offer;
• Widening the residential offer of the town; and,
• Marketing Swanley as a business and residential destination.

The presentation also considered a number of development proposals in 
some detail, including transport and leisure improvements and set out details 
of public consultation undertaken to test the needs and wants of local 
residents.

It was noted that arising from the consultation a 20 year Master vision for the 
area had been developed, to include housing developments, town centre 
redevelopment, transport improvements and plans to improve the quality of 
parks and green spaces within Swanley and Hextable.

The Master Vision also contained provision for health provision improvements 
and aimed to offer healthy living options for local residents.  

The Board was informed that Sevenoaks Council had been working closely 
with the local CCG to ensure the realisation of the development and that 
health was a major plank in the whole process.

The Board agreed to note the presentation and the plans for regeneration and 
future health provision in Swanley and Hextable.



DARTFORD GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

THURSDAY 25 AUGUST 2016

4

21. FALLS PREVENTION AND THE INTEGRATED FALLS PILOT 

The Board received a report which updated Members on the work undertaken 
in Dartford Gravesend and Swanley to reduce the number of falls amongst 
elderly and infirm people and presented data on a number of falls related 
issues.

The report explained ongoing and new work streams being undertaken in the 
following areas

 Community Falls 

 Launch of Acute frailty pathways, ambulatory care unit and ageing health 
clinics 

 Creation of Falls ‘Hub’ Kent Public Health 

 Postural stability classes 

 Kent wide Falls group 

 Integrated falls pilot with Kent Fire & Rescue Service 

 Polypharmacy reduction 

 Care home provider forum 

 New review of Frailty pathways and services within DGS 

 New improved links with District Council Housing – 

Members expressed some concern that falls outcomes did not seem to have 
improved to levels expected by the Board, and that linkages and co - 
ordination between services were not as well developed as was felt 
necessary.

Accordingly it was agreed that a report be presented to the Board as soon as 
possible considering outcomes and the co – ordination of work strands, and 
possible initiatives to improve the current situation. 

22. LOCAL ESTATE STRATEGY AND ONE PUBLIC ESTATE 

The Board received reports from the Clinical Commissioning Group and from 
Kent County Council on the ongoing review of the NHS estate holdings within 
the Board area (the Strategic Estate Plan)and the One Public Estate initiative 
in Kent.



DARTFORD GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

THURSDAY 25 AUGUST 2016

5

Debbie Stock reported that the objectives of the Strategic Estate Plan (SEP) 
were to review the NHS estate within the CCG area and align this with 
commissioning service requirements to identify estate changes in terms of 
investment required and rationalisation opportunities which will deliver both 
clinical and financial benefits. 

The SEP also aimed to allow the identification of key priorities for estate 
development in primary care as part of the Estates and Technology 
Transformation Fund (ETTF) programme.

It was noted that key to the determination of estate priorities and solutions 
was the development of a primary and community care clinical model which 
when agreed would be used to inform the services required, the locations and 
facilities to enable delivery of this model.

It was also noted that the development of the Strategy was an ongoing and 
iterative process, that the SEP has been updated and that it was currently in 
its third version. 

Carol Patrick of Kent County Council informed the Board of the work of the 
One Public Estate Initiative (OPE).

Mrs Patrick informed the Board that the OPE programme is designed to 
facilitate and enable public sector organisations to work collaboratively on 
property and land matters, to encourage Public sector partners OPE 
principles and reap strategic benefits including the development of joint 
accommodation plans.

She further reported on bids submitted for the possible provision of a new 
health facility in Dartford Town centre which would enable the rationalisation 
of health care in the area and attract users external to the immediate area to 
relocate.

The Board welcomed both reports and thanked Mrs Stock and Mrs Patrick for 
presenting the information.

23. HEALTH INEQUALITIES GROUPS - REPORTS 

The Board received its regular update on the work of the three district health 
inequalities sub groups, and progress made against the delivery of each 
district’s Inequality action plan.

It was reported that difficulties were being experienced in delivering Objective 
3 relating to Healthy Workplaces and that this may need to be amended to 
“Working Toward” status due to the unwillingness of local employers to 
commit to the programme.

The Board agreed to note the progress made.



DARTFORD GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

THURSDAY 25 AUGUST 2016

6

24. ACTIONS OUTSTANDING FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS. 

The Board received and noted a report on issues outstanding from previous 
meetings.

25. INFORMATION EXCHANGE 

There was no information for dissemination to the Board Members.

26. BOARD WORK PROGRAMME 

The Board considered a report on its updated programme of work for the 
forthcoming year.  It was noted that during the Board training session earlier 
in the day questions were raised regarding the format of Board meetings and 
the structure of the Board Agenda.  It was further explained that a need for 
more “workshop” style meetings had been expressed.

Accordingly it was agreed that Councillor Mrs Allen consult with the Chairman 
and that a review of the Board’s current processes and practice be 
undertaken with a view to formulating reforms for the future.



KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

MINUTES of a meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board held in the Darent Room, 
Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Wednesday, 21 September 2016.

PRESENT: Mr R W Gough (Chairman), Dr F Armstrong, Mr I Ayres, Dr B Bowes 
(Vice-Chairman), Dr S Chaudhuri, Mr I Duffy (Substitute for Ms F Cox), 
Mr G K Gibbens, Mr M Gilbert (Substitute for Dr E Lunt), Mr S Inett, Mr A Ireland, 
Mr B Jones (Substitute for Ms P Davies), Dr N Kumta, Dr T Martin, Mr P J Oakford, 
Dr S Phillips, Cllr K Pugh, Mr A Scott-Clark and Dr R Stewart

IN ATTENDANCE: Mrs A Hunter (Principal Democratic Services Officer)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

235. Chairman's Welcome 
(Item 1)

(1) The Chairman welcomed Caroline Selkirk, Ian Sutherland and Cllr David 
Brake from Medway Health and Wellbeing Board to the meeting and thanked 
them for agreeing to attend to contribute to item 5 - Outcome 3 of the Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy and Development of Out of Hospital Care.

(2) Mr Gough also said that following a previous report to the HWB Board and 
discussions at a sub-group, comprising representatives from social care, 
public health and clinical commissioning groups, a proposal to engage with the 
voluntary sector had been developed.  It was proposed, through Kent 
HealthWatch, to undertake a survey to provide initial high level analysis to the 
Board about whether engagement with the voluntary and community sector 
would be beneficial.  The focus of the survey was to assess the attitude of the 
VCS towards influencing strategies such as the Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
and, if so, to identify the most appropriate mechanisms. In addition the survey 
would also consider the perceptions of the VCS of the key challenges within 
the health and social care system.  It was anticipated that the survey would be 
conducted in October and early November. 

236. Apologies and Substitutes 
(Item 2)

(1) Apologies for absence were received from Mr Carter, Ms Carpenter, Ms Cox, 
Ms P Davies, Dr E Lunt, Mr S Perks, Cllr P Watkins and Cllr L Weatherly.

(2) Mr I Duffy, Mr B Jones and M Gilbert attended as substitutes for Ms Cox, Ms 
Davies and Dr Lunt respectively. 

237. Declarations of Interest by Members in items on the agenda for this meeting 
(Item 3)



There were no declarations of interest. 
 

238. Minutes of the Meeting held on 20 July 2016 
(Item 4)

(1) Mr Scott-Clark provided an update on developments referred to in minutes 225 
(1).  He said confirmation had been received from the new Minister of State, 
that the implementation of the planned reduction in funding for community 
pharmacies was being delayed. 

(2) Resolved that the minutes of the last meeting are correctly recorded and that 
they be signed by the Chairman subject to the replacement of the words 
“admissions” and “admit” with the words “detentions” and “detain” in minute 
230(2).

239. Outcome 3 of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy and Development of Out of 
Hospital Care 
(Item 5)

(1) Mr Gough said Malti Varshney (Consultant in Public Health) would set out 
performance against key indicators relating to Outcome 3 (Quality of life for 
people with long term conditions) of the Kent Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
(KHWBS) and this would be followed by consideration of out of hospital care 
across the county which was also integral to the work on the Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan (STP) being done across Kent and Medway.

(2) Ms Varshney introduced the report which provided information on indicators 
related to Outcome 3 of the KHWBS.  She drew particular attention to 
performance in relation to the number of adult social care clients receiving a 
telecare service and the target of increasing the proportion of older people at 
risk of long term care and hospital admission, who were still at home 91 days 
after discharge from hospital, where performance was good and to 
performance in relation to reducing hip fractures for over 65’s and for injuries 
due to falls in people over 65 where performance was below the targets set.  
She also said that although performance in relation to delayed transfers of 
care varied over the months, it had increased in July 2016 for reasons related 
to both NHS and Social Care.

(3) In response to questions she confirmed that the data she referred to was 
available to clinical commissioning groups and her team would assist with 
access on request. She also said that if local health and wellbeing boards 
would find it useful, consideration could be given to quantifying the annual 
direct health care costs of fractures and falls as well as the on-going costs to 
social care.

(4) Ian Ayres(West Kent CCG), Dr T Martin (Thanet CCG), Dr J Chaudhuri (South 
Kent Coast CCG) , Dr F Armstrong (Dartford Gravesham and Swanley CCG), 
Dr S Phillips (Canterbury and Coastal CCG), Dr N Kumta (Ashford CCG), Dr B 
Bowes (West Kent CCG)  and Ms C Selkirk (Medway CCG) gave a 
presentation on progress on implementing out of hospital care in each CCG.  
A copy of the presentation is available on-line as Appendix A to these minutes.



(5) Following the presentation comments were made as follows:
 Given the shortage of GPs consideration be given to having frailty 

specialist nurses; 
 Given the contrast between Kent having seven clinical commissioning 

groups and Medway having one it was unsurprising that integration of 
health and social care appeared to be more advanced in Medway; 

 Kent had implemented a range of integrated services such as learning 
disabilities, children’s services and mental health but progress was less in 
services to older people that would be central to the development of the 
STP;

 The need to involve social care providers (both domiciliary and residential) 
in discussions at an early stage;

 The need to develop core strategies and principles for service delivery 
which could be interpreted locally for different environments;

 Assumptions being made about reducing the cost of care, by moving care 
from the acute sector to integrated service delivery around hubs or clusters 
might have an impact an internal NHS markets;

 The need for good “cross-border” arrangements between hubs or clusters 
to ensure economies of scale;

 The potential for the Integration Pioneer to test models of care to ensure 
they were safe for both citizens and professionals and that there was a 
consistent approach across the county which was sufficiently flexible to 
recognise local differences;

 The development of the STP and the integration of health and social care 
are predicated on assumptions, supported by evidence, that care of people 
in their own homes improves clinical outcomes, improves re-ablement and 
enables a better quality of life: however, the vision of how this might 
operate in practice from the patient’s perspective needs to be more clearly 
articulated and not considered only in terms of organisation design;

 Since July 2016 much work has been done to draw learning from pilots and 
the next step was to quantify and describe in detail what the various 
elements of the service might look like and plan its implementation;

 All GPs were urged to submit data to a central repository to enable the 
robust needs assessment backed up by evidence from the whole STP area 
to be produced;

(6) Resolved that:

(a) Local health and wellbeing boards undertake a review of injuries due to 
falls in people aged 65 and over, and report back on progress in 
delivery and outcomes at the Board meeting in March 2017;

(b) Subject to clarification of the data relating to hip fracture, and 
agreement by email, to ask local health and wellbeing boards to include 
hip fractures in their reviews;

(c) To align outcomes of the current health and wellbeing strategy with the 
delivery outcomes of the STP;

(d) Issues relating to social care be included in the work being undertaken 
for the STP by Carnall Farrar;



(e) A progress report be considered by the Board in six months. 

240. One public estate/ local estates update (Presentation) 
(Item 6)

(1) Rebecca Spore (Director of Infrastructure) gave a presentation which is 
available on-line as Appendix B to these minutes).  

(2) In response to questions, she said that the quality of the data on the 
collaboration portal and e-pims depended on quality of the information 
uploaded; however, it was anticipated that there would be a commitment from 
the members of the Kent Estate Partnership to upload high quality information.  
She also said that e-pims provided information about public sector 
landholdings.

(3) Ms Spore also said that discussions with the Cabinet Office were taking place 
to consider how e-pims and the Shape Model being rolled out across Kent, 
might be linked together to enhance information and avoid multiple data entry. 

(4) Comments were made that, at the national level, some NHS funding streams 
were predicated on receipts from assets sold by NHS Property Services being 
returned to the Treasury and there was, therefore, little incentive at the local 
level to declare any assets as surplus or unfit for purpose. Further comments 
were made relating to the need to understand the revenue consequences of 
receipt from the sale of capital.

(5) It was also suggested that the utilisation of estate be considered as many 
services were delivered from privately owned property . 

(6) In response to comments, Ms Spore said: the utilisation of property, including 
privately owned property, should be included in any review of property use and 
at the point of commissioning services; issues relating to releasing capital 
locally from the sale of property could be escalated via the One Public Estate 
Initiative to the Cabinet Office; and that it might be possible for health 
organisations to rent public sector assets at a lower cost than renting from the 
private sector or NHS Property Services.  She also said that during 
discussions relating to the One Public Estate Initiative and the development of 
the Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) opportunities to make the 
most efficient use of the public estate would become apparent and specific 
difficulties escalated through the initiative. 

(7) Resolved that:

(a) Ms Spore be thanked for her presentation;

(b) The streams of work in the One Public Estate Initiative and in the 
development of the STP be supported.



241. Draft Kent Health and Wellbeing Board Annual Report 2015-16 
(Item 7)

(1) Karen Cook (Policy and Relationship Adviser – Health) and Mark Lemon 
(Strategic Relationship Adviser) introduced the draft annual report for the Kent 
Health and Wellbeing Board covering the period April 2015 to March 2016. 

(2) Mrs Cook said that, in addition to being a partnership board, the Health and 
Wellbeing Board was a formal committee of Kent County Council and as such 
was required to provide assurance that it was meeting its statutory 
responsibilities.  The final annual report of the board would be presented to the 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 7 October 2016 before being 
submitted to the County Council on 8 December 2016. 

(3) She asked the Board to consider the draft annual report and to suggest 
amendments.

(4) Resolved that:

(a) The draft report be noted;

(b) An amendment be made to the last sentence of paragraph 4.4 so that it 
read “An announcement was made by Government in September 2016 
that, due to national response to the consultation, the proposed 
changes would not be implemented by October 2016 as planned;

(c) Reference be made to the protocols relating to the Kent Safeguarding 
Adults Board and the Kent Safeguarding Children’s Board;

(d) Amendments be made to ensure all job titles were correct in the final 
report. 

242. HealthWatch Kent Annual Report 
(Item 8)

(1) Steve Inett (Chief Executive) introduced the 2015/16 annual report for 
HealthWatch.  He also gave a presentation highlighting the key activities and 
achievements as well as outlining the priorities for the future.  A copy of the 
presentation is available on-line as Appendix C to these minutes.

(2) In response to a question about the priority accorded to mental health issues, 
Mr Inett said that when HealthWatch Kent had been first established it had 
done considerable work with carers and users of mental health services and 
other areas now needed to be prioritised.

(3) Resolved that

(a) The annual report be noted;

(b) HealthWatch Kent be thanked for their appropriate balance of challenge 
and support that added value across the health system. 



243. Kent Health and Wellbeing Board Forward Work Programme 
(Item 9)

Resolved that the Forward Work Programme be endorsed. 
 

244. Minutes of the Local Health and Wellbeing Boards 
(Item 10)

Resolved the minutes of local health and wellbeing boards be noted as follows:

Ashford – 20 July 2016
Canterbury and Coastal –  6 July 2016
South Kent Coast – 28 June 2016
West Kent – 5 July 2016

245. Date of Next Meeting - 23 November 2016 
(Item 11)



AGENDA

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Wednesday, 23rd November, 2016, at 6.30 pm Ask for: Ann Hunter

Darent Room, Sessions House, County Hall, 
Maidstone

Telephone 03000 416287

Refreshments will be available 15 minutes before the start of the meeting 

Membership 

Dr F Armstrong, Mr I Ayres, Dr B Bowes (Vice-Chairman), Ms H Carpenter, 
Mr P B Carter, CBE, Cllr Mrs S Chandler, Dr S Chaudhuri, Ms F Cox, Ms P Davies, 
Mr G K Gibbens, Mr R W Gough (Chairman), Mr S Inett, Mr A Ireland, Dr N Kumta, 
Dr E Lunt, Dr T Martin, Mr P J Oakford, Mr S Perks, Dr S Phillips, Dr M Philpott, Cllr K Pugh, 
Mr A Scott-Clark, Dr R Stewart, Cllr P Watkins and Cllr L Weatherly

Webcasting Notice

Please note:  this meeting may be filmed for the live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council’s internet site or by any member of the public or press present.   The Chairman will 
confirm if all or part of the meeting is to be filmed by the Council.

By entering into this room you are consenting to being filmed.  If you do not wish to have 
your image captured please let the Clerk know immediately

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

1 Chairman's Welcome 
 

2 Apologies and Substitutes 

To receive apologies for absence and notification of any 
substitutes

3 Declarations of Interest by Members in items on the agenda for this meeting 



To receive any declarations of Interest by Members in items on 
the agenda for the meeting

4 Minutes of the Meeting held on 21 September 2016 (Pages 5 - 10)

To receive and agree the minutes of the last meeting

5 Kent  Safeguarding Children  Board - 2015/16 Annual Report (Pages 11 - 70)

To receive and note the annual report for 2015/16

6 Review of Outcome 5 - Dementia (Pages 71 - 76)

To consider progress made by the health and social care 
system towards Outcome 5 of the Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy

7 Developing a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy  2018-21 (Pages 77 - 84)

To receive a report that presents an overview of initial thinking 
about the development of the next Kent Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy as the current strategy ends in 2017.

8 Developing the Relationship between the Kent Health and Wellbeing Board 
and the VCS (Pages 85 - 96)

To receive a report providing an update on the findings of the 
survey conducted to gather the view of the VCS in relation to its 
relationship and engagement with the Health and Wellbeing 
Board

9 Kent Transformation Plan for Children, Young People and Young Adults’ 
Mental Health and Wellbeing (attached) (Pages 97 - 148)

To note the refreshed transformation plan

10 0-25 Health and Wellbeing Board (Pages 149 - 154)

To note the minutes of the 0-25 Health and Wellbeing Board 
held on 15 June 2016

11 Kent Health and Wellbeing Board Work Programme (Pages 155 - 158)

To agree a Forward Work Programme



12 Minutes of the Local Health and Wellbeing Boards (Pages 159 - 190)

To note the minutes of local health and wellbeing boards as 
follows:

Ashford -  19 October 2016
Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley – 25 August 2016
Swale – 21 September 2016
Thanet – 8 September 2016
West Kent CCG – 18 October 2016

13 Dates of Health and Wellbeing Board Meetings in 2017/18 

To agree that meetings of the Health and Wellbeing Board will 
take place at 6:30pm on the following dates:

Weds 7 June 2017
Weds 19 July 2017
Weds 20 September 2017
Weds 22 November 2017
Weds 24 January 2018
Weds 21 March 2018

(It has previously been agreed that meetings of the Board will take place on
 25 January and 22 March 2017)

EXEMPT ITEMS
(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items.  During any such items 

which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

John Lynch
Head of Democratic Services 
03000 410466

Tuesday, 15 November 2016





DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

7 December 2016

______________________________________________________________________________

1

From: Sarah Kilkie
Assistant Director (Communities), Gravesham BC

Subject: Outcomes of the LGA facilitated workshop for the DGS HWB and the way 
forward

Classification: Public

Summary:
This report sets out the feedback from the LGA facilitated workshop held for the DGS HWB on 25 
August 2016 and proposes a way forward

Recommendations

The Board to endorse the proposals as laid out at paragraph 3 of this report.

1. The LGA workshop

1.1. The DGS HWB invited the Local Government Association to facilitate a development 
session for them on 25 August 2016.

1.2. A total of 18 Board members and supporting officers were present The session was 
facilitated by Andrew Cozens, an LGA associate with extensive experience in the health 
and wellbeing field.

1.3. The workshop focused on 
1.3.1. a stocktake of where the board is now
1.3.2. clarifying roles and responsibilities for the Board,
1.3.3. key issues and priorities for the Board
1.3.4. the Board’s priority of tackling obesity was used an illustrative example for the 

workshop discussions

1.4. Discussions were informed by learning taken from what other HWBs are doing both locally 
and nationally , with the intention that the session would help guide the thinking on where 
DGS HWB should focus its efforts and how it should develop in the future.

1.5. An integral part of the session was use of the LGAs HWB diagnostic tool to gauge the 
Board’s ambition, working arrangements and impact. This tool was applied in the form of a 
survey to all Board members and associated officers prior to the workshop session. 10 out 
of 19 individuals (53%) participated in the survey and anonymised collated results were 
presented at the workshop to serve as a focus for discussion. (Results provided at 
Appendix 1)

2. Workshop feedback 



DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

7 December 2016

______________________________________________________________________________

2

2.1. During the workshop, participants were asked to participate in two discussion exercises as 
follows:
2.1.1. Exercise 1  -Coming together on health and wellbeing, defining the purpose
2.1.2. Exercise 2 Delivering joint working in the DGS area - general and specific plans, 

using ‘tackling obesity’ as an example.

2.2. The notes captured in these discussions, and recommended actions arising  as drawn out 
by the facilitator, are presented at Appendix 2.

3. The way forward

3.1. Arising from the workshop and subsequent discussions by the DGS HWB it was agreed 
that the Chairman and Sarah Kilkie would meet to review the points raised at the training 
session and to formulate an alternative approach to decision making and task setting.

3.2. This meeting took place on 12 October 2016 and was also attended by Sheri Green and 
Neil Murphy of Dartford BC. The outcomes of the workshop were reviewed and given 
consideration alongside the existing terms of reference and governance arrangements for 
the DGS HWB.

3.3. It was agreed, subject to endorsement by the Board, that:

3.3.1. Future meetings to be kept more focused. Main agenda items at each meeting to be 
planned so as to be on a common theme or a couple of linked themes

3.3.2. Any ‘standing items’ coming to the DGS HWB meetings to generally be ‘taken as 
read’ and dealt with concisely so as to allow greater focus on the other parts of the 
agenda and on meaningful and productive partnership working.

3.3.3. To invite additional persons, authorities and organisations to attend specific Board 
meetings where it is thought that they could usefully contribute 

3.3.4. Greater engagement by Adult Social Care with the DGS HWB would be beneficial 
3.3.5. Make greater use of the synergies and linkages between DGS HWB and other 

partnership groups -such as the Community Safety Partnerships.
3.3.6. The formal meetings of the DGS HWB to be supplemented with separately 

convened workshops where practical themes and issues can be considered and taken 
forward by relevant Board members, partners and practitioners. (These workshops 
would not be public meetings)

3.4. The workshop raised the suggestion of the DGS HWB having its own ‘identity’ and 
communication strategy, and putting out messages to the public. However,  on reflection, it 
was decided that it was not necessary to take the proposal forward. It was felt that the 
public would respond better to messages coming from the already well-known trusted 
individual partner organisations, but with better coordination of messages where 
appropriate.

3.5. If the Board are agreeable to the proposals given above, it is planned that we focus our 
next meeting (1 Feb 2017) on mental health issues and invite Kent Police to be in 
attendance, as mental health is also a major consideration for them. 

3.6. It is planned that our first workshop session would be based on our obesity priority.

3. Background Papers - None



DGS HWB LGA Workshop Feedback Notes 25 August 2016

Facilitated by Andrew Cozens

Feedback from exercise one – Coming together on health and wellbeing: Defining the 
purpose

 Board needs to have an unambiguous view of the needs of the area and priorities for 
action -specifying the outcomes they want. This to include short term outcomes as 
well as longer term so that we can see progress and success whilst aware that long 
term behaviour change takes time

 This clarity then informs and is reflected in  commissioning strategies
 Commissioning decisions of each organisation are currently made in isolation from 

the Board and are then reported for info.  Proposal is that we should have early 
communication and discussions prior to such commissioning, bringing in local 
knowledge from partners.

 Develop sharper commitment on a few clear priorities rather broad overview on 
many. Andrew Cozens presented the 3 concentric rings model of ‘watch’, ‘sponsor’ 
and ‘act’

 The Board spends too much time on broad strategy rather than on driving practical 
projects forward and then reviewing and receiving feedback on what is working 

o This could be a role of the subgroups  - once they are checked as still suitable 
and delivering

 Need for a clear strategic framework and this to be reflected in partner plans
 Possibly need to restructure our meetings - keep things specific and focus on those 

things that we can only do as a group
 We need to capitalise on the existing linkages to other groups which our Board 

members also sit on e.g. CSPs 
 We need to hear more from other Kent district/borough HWBs about what works well 

and sharing good practice
 Setting direction is possibly better done via workshops than by more formal meetings
 Beware of Board meetings sliding into scrutiny mode
 Possible barriers within Board due to differing attitudes to risk and different financial 

resource
 Much of DGS HWB agenda is currently driven by Kent HWB – thus potentially at 

variance with the above suggestions. Perhaps the Kent HWB would benefit from  
undergoing the LGA self assessment and review exercise too

Feedback from exercise two  - Delivering Joint Working in the DGS area  -general 
and specific plans  - use of Tackling Obesity as an example

 We have done mapping exercises and identified priorities – all partners have done 
some work to deliver – but we need to re-energise and take it further as a Board.

 See the Board as a driver of local change 
 How do we get beyond ‘business as usual’ and the differences that is already making 

and move up to the next level
 Need for whole population discussions 



 Board needs to better understand and simplify the relationships it has with other 
groups.

  Exploit shared membership between Board and other groups 
 Board needs to be more outward looking  and better engage with others (eg local 

primary headteachers re obesity)
 Board needs to act as a ‘mobiliser’ in the local community via Comms, marketing and 

promotion. (Possibly Board itself needs to have a Comms strategy and to supply 
Comms staff expertise as resource)

 Consider changing the style of our meetings  - using workshops, and ‘show and tell’ 
sessions as well as traditional reports. Reduce the bureaucracy where possible

 Rethink the role of providers – they have delivery expertise

Recommended actions

 Change format to themed workshop followed by formal meeting if needed. Bring in 
others who can bring expertise to the discussion

 Choose small number of local. distinctive HWB priorities to focus on, based on those 
that need all of us to focus on

 Follow up discussion with shape, why, who, how action plans
 Recommend Kent HWB undertakes exercise so there is symmetry of understanding 

how we are working and on what
 Think about communication



DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

7 December 2016

______________________________________________________________________________

1

From: Clerk to the Board 

Subject: DGS Health and Wellbeing Board Draft Schedule of Meetings 
2017/2018

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary:
This report sets out a draft programme of meetings for the Board in 2017/ 2018

Recommendations

Members are asked to consider the programme and to be prepared to approve the 
schedule at their February meeting.

1. Background and discussion

1.1The Board currently meets on a bi monthly basis roughly half way between the 
meetings of the Kent HWB.  The proposed schedule attempts to replicate this pattern.

1.2This report sets out in Appendix 1 a proposed schedule of meetings for 2017/18 and 
asks Members to consider the programme and to be prepared to approve this at the 
February meeting.

1.3 Members may wish to consider the necessity for a meeting to be arranged in August 
due to the difficulty that this poses for Member attendance.

2 Contact details

Neil Murphy Clerk to the Board, Dartford Borough Council, 
email:neil.murphy@dartford.gov.uk

3. Background Papers - None





Appendix

KCC HWB Dates Proposed  DGS HWB  Dates
2017 June 7

June 28  
July 19

August 23 
Sept 20

Oct 25 
Nov 22

Dec 20 
 2018   Jan 24

Feb 21
Mar 21

Apr  11





DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

7 DECEMBER 2016
Agenda Item 

______________________________________________________________________________

1

From: Executive Group (Member Services) 

Subject: Action Points Arising From Previous Meeting(s) of the DGS HWB

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary:
The report details progress against action points arising from the previous meeting(s).

Recommendations

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to:

Note the action points arising from previous meeting(s) and subsequent action, and 
consider whether any item should be added to the forward work plan to enable a more 
detailed discussion at a future meeting.

1. Background and discussion

Meeting 
first raised

Minute/Item Action taken/to be taken Lead

24/2/2016 Min 59 – 
Regeneration in 
Swanley

Board to investigate participation by young 
people in physical activity including 
availability of grant funding for sports clubs 
etc to encourage participation – report to form 
background for February’s Obesity workshop

District 
Councils

8/6/2016 Min 95 – Work 
Programme

Board to receive report on the new DAAT 
service – scheduled on forward workplan

PH (Val 
Miller)

1 Conclusion and Recommendations
The Board is asked to:

Note the action points arising from previous meeting(s) and subsequent action, and 
consider whether any additional item should be added to the forward work plan to 
enable a more detailed discussion at a future meeting, or any other action taken.

3 Contact details

Neil Murphy, Committee Coordinator, Dartford Borough Council, 
email: neil.murphy @dartford.gov.uk

4. Background Papers - None





DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

7 DECEMBER 2016
Agenda Item x

______________________________________________________________________________

1

From: Executive Group 

Subject: DGS Health and Wellbeing Board Work Plan

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary:
This report proposes items for inclusion in the Board’s forward work plan.

Recommendations

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to:

Consider and approve the forward work plan, subject to any amendments or 
additions that the Board wishes to make. 

1. Background and discussion

1.1 The work plan schedules update reports from the Local Children’s Partnership 
Groups (previously Children’s Operational Groups) and Health Inequalities Groups. 

1.2 The work plan also gives advance notice of other items which the Board has 
indicated that it wishes to consider, or that the Kent Board has asked it to consider.

1.3 The work plan does not preclude matters not on the work plan being submitted to any 
meeting of the Board with the agreement of the Chairman.

1.4 The Board will have an opportunity at each meeting to consider its work plan and add 
items, particularly key plans and strategies, when the timing of such is known.  

2 Conclusion and Recommendations
The work plan ensures the Health and Wellbeing Board receives regular reports from 
those sub-Groups managing the key areas of the Board’s business and gives advance 
notice of other matters to be discussed. The Board is asked to:

Consider and approve the forward work plan, subject to any amendments or 
additions that the Board wishes to make. 

3 Contact details

Sheri Green, Strategic Director (External Services), Dartford Borough Council, 
email:sheri.green@dartford.gov.uk

4. Background Papers - None





1

DARTFORD GRAVESEND AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

7 DECEMBER 2016
Agenda Item 

APPENDIX A
Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley HWB Forward Work Plan

Meeting Topic Suggested 
Lead

February 
2017

Adolescent Mental Health Service – including 
update on new commissioned service

CCG (Dr Lunt)

Mental Health and the impact on other services 
(Kent Police to be invited)

Obesity – what works? (a workshop) Mark Lennon 
(KCC)

April 2017 Report on 1st year of new DAAT Service PH/CGL
Alcohol Strategy Update – final report PH/CGL 

June 2017 Report from Local Children’s Partnership Groups LCPGs
(Nick Moor)

ITEMS TO BE SCHEDULED

JSNA - Assessment of the effectiveness of local services relating to the identified 
service priorities

Employability & Health – GP Education




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Kent County Council Health and Wellbeing Board
	Agenda frontsheet 23rd-Nov-2016 18.30 Health and Wellbeing Board

	9 Feedback from LGA Workshop.
	Appx 3 LGA workshop feedback

	10 Programme of Meetings 2017 - 2018
	KCC HWB Dates

	11 Actions Outstanding from Previous Meetings.
	12 Board Work Programme
	20161207 Work Plan Appendix


